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PLEASE NOTE 
 
 
This paperless packet is published on the County’s website for 
convenience purposes, and only includes information received up to 
the close of business on the day before a public hearing.  Documents 
received after this, or documents submitted during the public hearing 
are not uploaded to the Paperless Packet.  The legal record is the 
paper record maintained in the Offices of the Planning & Zoning 
Department. 
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PLANNING AND ZONING AND COUNTY COUNCIL INFORMATION SHEET 

Planning Commission Public Hearing Date: February 9th, 2023 

 

Application: CU 2376 Jose Hernandez 

 

Applicant: Jose Hernandez 

 23086 Hollyville Road 

 Harbeson, DE 19951 

 

Owner: Gustavo Hernandez 

 1 Neurys Lane 

 Newark, DE 19702 

 

Site Location:  North side of Hollyville Road (S.C.R. 48), approximately 0.28-miles 

southwest of the four-way intersection of Harbeson Road (Rt. 5), Indian 

Mission Road (Rt. 5), Hollymount Road (S.C.R. 48) and Hollyville 

Road. 

 

Current Zoning: Agricultural Residential (AR-1) Zoning District   

 

Proposed Use:  Operation of an existing pool company known as Pool Stars, LLC.  

 

Comprehensive Land  

Use Plan Reference:   Low Density 

 

Councilmanic 

District:  Mr. John Rieley 

 

School District: Sussex Central School District 

 

Fire District:  Millsboro Fire Co.  

 

Sewer:   Private On-site Septic 

 

Water:    Private Well 

 

Site Area:   6.56-acres +/- 

 

Tax Map ID.:   234-10.00-70.03 
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Memorandum 
To: Sussex County Planning and Zoning Commission Members  
From: Mr. Elliott Young, Planner I 
CC: Mr. Vince Robertson, Assistant County Attorney and Applicant  
Date: January 24, 2023 
RE: Staff Analysis for CU 2376 Jose Hernandez  

 
The purpose of this memo is to provide background and analysis for the Planning and Zoning 
Commission to consider as a part of Application CU 2376 Jose Hernandez to be reviewed during 
the February 9th, 2023, Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting. This analysis should be included 
in the record of this application and is subject to comments and information that may be presented 
during the public hearing. 
 
The request is for a Conditional Use for Tax Parcel: 234-10.00-70.03, to allow for a swimming pool 
business to be located off Hollyville Road (S.C.R. 48), Harbeson, Delaware. The property is lying 
on the North side of Hollyville Road, approximately 0.39-miles northeast of the intersection of 
Hollyville Road and Hurdle Ditch Road (S.C.R. 290). The parcel consists of 6.56-acres +/-. 
 
Comprehensive Plan Analysis 
 
The 2018 Sussex County Comprehensive Plan Update (Comprehensive Plan) provides a 
framework of how land is to be developed. As part of the Comprehensive Plan, a Future Land Use 
Map is included to help determine how land should be zoned to ensure responsible development.  
The Future Land Use map in the plan indicates that the parcel has a designation of “Low Density”. 
The surrounding and adjacent parcels to the north, south and west also contain the “Low Density” 
Future Land Use Map designation.  
 
As outlined in the 2018 Sussex County Comprehensive Plan, Low Density areas are intended to 
support agricultural uses and low-density single-family housing. Specifically, the Comprehensive 
Plan states that single family homes have a density of up to two dwelling units to the acre. It is 
envisioned that the Low-Density Areas allow for businesses that support nearby residents and the 
agricultural economy. More intense commercial uses could be limited in scale and impact. While 
residential growth is expected, the Comprehensive Plan intends for the rural landscape to be 
maintained and for farmland to be preserved in select locations.  
 
The adjoining parcel to the east and surrounding parcels to the northeast of the subject parcel 
contain the Future Land Use Map designation of “Commercial”. 
 
Commercial Areas include concentrations of retail and service uses that are mainly located along 
arterials, and highways. As opposed to small, traditional downtown areas that are often historic and 
pedestrian-friendly, Commercial Areas include commercial corridors, shopping centers, and other 
medium and large commercial vicinities geared towards vehicular traffic. In addition to primary 
shopping destinations, this area would also be the appropriate place to locate hotels, motels, car 



 
 

Staff Analysis 
CU 2376 Jose Hernandez  
Planning and Zoning Commission for February 9th, 2023 
 

 

washes, auto dealerships,  and other medium and larger scale commercial uses not primarily targeted 
to the residents of immediately adjacent residential areas. These more intense uses should be located 
along main roads or near major intersections. Institutional and commercial uses may be appropriate 
depending on surrounding uses. Mixed-use buildings may also be appropriate for these areas. 
 
Zoning Information 
 
The subject property is zoned Agricultural Residential (AR-1) District. All adjacent properties to 
the south and west of the subject property are zoned Agricultural Residential (AR-1) District. The 
parcel to the north of the subject property is zoned Neighborhood Business (B-1) District and the 
parcels to the east of the subject property are zoned General Commercial (C-1) District. 
 
Existing Conditional Uses within the Vicinity of the Subject Property 
 
Since 2011, there have been seven(7) Conditional Use applications within a mile radius of the 
application site. Two (2) out of the seven (7) applications were approved by the County Council, 
while three (3) of the seven (7) were either withdrawn before Commission or Council. The 
remaining two (2) application have yet to be heard by the County Council. Below is a table with 
the seven applications and their associated information. 
 

Conditional 
Use No. 

Applicant Use Zoning CC 
Approval 

Date 

Ordinance 
No. 

2370 William & 
Carol 

Emmert 

Amendment to CU 
1334 for additional 

building 

AR-1 N/A N/A 

2367 Attack 
Addiction 

Foundation 

Housing for people 
with disabilities 

AR-1 N/A N/A 

2266 MDO 
Dreamlands, 

LLC 

Hardscaping, 
decking company, 

small dumpster 
rentals 

AR-1 Withdrawn N/A 

2238 Michael 
Parsons 

Go-cart track/go-
cart repair/sales 

shop/ concession 

AR-1 Withdrawn N/A 

2118 John W. 
Davidson 

Professional office 
with contractor 

storage 

AR-1 3/20/2018  
2570 

1991 Cool Springs 
LL/ 

Highway 
One 

Outdoor 
Entertainment 

Events 
w/temporary 

camping facilities 
during events only 

AR-1 Withdrawn N/A 

1978 John W. 
Davidson 

Professional Office 
w/contractor 

storage 

AR-1 3/8/2014 2340 



 
 

Staff Analysis 
CU 2376 Jose Hernandez  
Planning and Zoning Commission for February 9th, 2023 
 

 

 
Based on the analysis provided, the Conditional use to allow for a swimming pool business in this 
location could be considered as being consistent with the surrounding land use, zoning, and uses, 
subject to considerations of scale and impact. 
 









 
N i c o l e  M a j e s k i   
     s e c r e t a r y  

 

 

                        May 31, 2022 
 
Mr. Jamie Whitehouse, Director 
Sussex County Planning & Zoning  
P.O. Box 417 
Georgetown, DE  19947 
  
Dear Mr. Whitehouse:   
 

The Department has completed its review of a Service Level Evaluation Request for the 
Jose Hernandez conditional use application, which we received on May 17, 2022. This 
application is for portion of a 6.97-acre parcel (Tax Parcel: 234-10.00-70.03). The subject land is 
located on the north side of Hollyville Road (Sussex Road 48) approximately 1,260 feet west of 
the intersection with Harbeson Road (Delaware Route 5). The subject land is currently zoned AR-
1 (Agricultural Residential), and the applicant seeks a conditional use approval to operate a pool 
contracting business. 

 
Per the 2019 Delaware Vehicle Volume Summary, the annual average daily traffic volume 

along Hollyville Road, which is from Harbeson Road to Harmons Hill Road (Sussex Road 302), 
is 4,371 vehicles per day.  

 
Based on our review, we estimate that the above land use will generate fewer than 50 

vehicle trips per day.  This number of trips is below DelDOT’s minimum warrants for determining 
that a Traffic Impact Study (TIS) should be required for a particular development. DelDOT’s 
regulations specify the minimum TIS warrants as 50 vehicle trips in any hour and/or 500 vehicle 
trips per day.  Because the proposed land use would generate fewer than 50 vehicle trips per day, 
we consider the development’s traffic impact to be diminutive in the context of our agreement 
with the County regarding land development coordination and we do not recommend that the 
applicant be required to perform a TIS for the subject application. DelDOT’s description of this 
application as diminutive with regard to warranting a TIS does not mean that it is diminutive in 
other respects. We recommend that the applicant not be required to perform a TIS for the subject 
application. 
 

If the County approves this application, the applicant should be reminded that DelDOT 
requires compliance with State regulations regarding plan approvals and entrance permits, whether 
or not a TIS is required. 



Mr. Jamie Whitehouse  
Page 2 of 2 
May 31, 2022 

 
Please contact Ms. Annamaria Furmato, at Annamaria.Furmato@delaware.gov, if you 

have questions concerning this correspondence.  
 
 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Claudy Joinville 
Project Engineer  
Development Coordination 
 

 
 

CJ:afm 
cc:  Jose Hernandez, Applicant 

Ann Lepore, Sussex County Planning & Zoning 
Sussex Reviewer, Sussex County Planning & Zoning 
David Edgell, State Planning Coordinator, Cabinet Committee on State Planning Issues 

 Todd Sammons, Assistant Director, Development Coordination 
 T. William Brockenbrough, County Coordinator, Development Coordination 
 Matt Schlitter, South District Public Works Engineer, Maintenance & Operations 
 Steve McCabe, Sussex County Review Coordinator, Development Coordination 

Derek Sapp, Subdivision Manager, Development Coordination 
Kevin Hickman, Subdivision Manager, Development Coordination 
Brian Yates, Subdivision Manager, Development Coordination 
John Andrescavage, Subdivision Manager, Development Coordination 

 James Argo, South District Project Reviewer, Maintenance & Operations 
Annamaria Furmato, Project Engineer, Development Coordination 

 






























































































	CU 2376 Jose Hernandez SLER Response.pdf
	Sincerely,
	Claudy Joinville
	Project Engineer
	Development Coordination



